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Rt. Hon Gwyneth Dunwoody MP

Chairman, the Transport Select Committee,

House of Commons, 
London SW1 

cc The Clerk to the Committee and all members of the Committee, Dr. Stephen Ladyman MP, Minister for Transport Gifford, and others, including www.safespeed.org.uk/vas.html

Serious Discrepancies in Home Office and Department of Transport

Figures for Relative Cost Effectiveness of Flashing Signs and Speed Cameras

Dear Ms. Dunwoody,

I enclose a copy of my letter to Dr. Stephen Ladyman regarding his belated admission that the figures he authorised the DfT to submit to your Committee were wrong by, as he claims, a factor of ten. The real error is of course far, greater.

Although that letter is addressed to Dr. Ladyman, every one of the points and objections I make to Dr. Ladyman’s failure to address other errors, his new one and the weasel-worded excuses he makes to try to avoid blame applies equally to you and to every member of your Committee who accepted those ludicrous figures in the first place, who refused to admit that they were wrong when I pointed that out last November to you and your Committee, who ignored my further letter sent in March enclosing irrefutable evidence that the data was wrong, and who agreed at your April Committee meeting to accept Dr. Ladyman's claims that these absurd figures were submitted "in good faith" and, astonishingly, that correcting the figures even by a factor of ten does not mean that you need to change the conclusions of your October report.

I need not repeat here the points I make in my letter to Dr. Ladyman, so I will add only these few points relating to your own conduct and that of your Committee:

1/ You wrote to me on 4th December flatly denying that the figures were misleading, yet almost one month after Dr. Ladyman wrote to you confirming that they were indeed wrong, I have yet to see one word of apology from you or your Committee not only for your failure to recognise what should have been obvious, but also for your evident failure to take the most elementary step of checking the figures I provided before rejecting my complaint.

2/ Similarly, you have failed to apologise in any way for completely ignoring the irrefutable evidence I sent you in March, merely telling me in a curt single paragraph reply that my letter had been filed.

3/ You and your Committee, astonishingly, accepted Dr. Ladyman's ludicrous claim that neither he, as Minister responsible, not anyone at the DfT "could not reasonably have known that the figures originally provided were not the full costs". Do you seriously believe, and do you seriously expect anyone else to believe, that the Roads Minister and Department responsible for speed camera policy could not be expected to know that it is impossible for any speed camera to be installed and operated for a year for £7.500 or that the real cost is of the order of £50,000 pa? Do you seriously believe, or expect anyone else to believe, that neither Dr. Ladyman nor the DfT could be expected to know that a vehicle activated sign is not only far less complex than a speed camera but also involves none of the administration of the speed camera system, and that it was therefore utterly impossible for a sign to cost twice as much as a camera? Do seriously believe, or expect others to believe, that it makes sense to compare cost effectiveness of equipment with a life of at least ten years, on only the first year costs - and thereby ignore the tens of thousands of pounds of recurring annual costs of speed cameras, compared to two hundred pounds a year for signs? Or that it makes sense to draw far-reaching conclusions from statistically meaningless figures of 3.1 and 2.2 accidents pa at only two sites?

4/ Do you seriously believe, or expect others to believe, that having proclaimed last October that speed cameras are the most cost effective method known and recommended more of them, while ignoring signs, that having now been forced (clearly reluctantly) to accept that you were wrong at least by a factor of ten (in reality fifty or more) there is no need whatever to change your recommendation for more cameras, or to recommend more signs? I have set out in detail in my letter to Dr. Ladyman why his self-serving claims for cameras as opposed to signs are illogical and indefensible, and I strongly suggest that you and your Committee make more of an effort to get your heads around those arguments than you have done since last November when I first raised all these issues with you.

5/  If nothing else, and in the interests of road safety, you are now surely obliged, as public servants with the responsibilities that implies, to confirm formally that signs, being far more cost effective than cameras, should be substantially increased in numbers. That you have failed to do so in your April letter is lamentable and suggests that you are more concerned with avoiding admitting error than with road safety.

6/ I recognise of course the pressure you felt to accept Dr. Ladyman's ludicrous letter and interpretation of these issues, because you knew full well that you any criticism of Dr. Ladyman would immediately have been reflected directly back to you and other members of your Committee for believing what should was clearly nonsense..

7/ I noted in my letter to Dr Ladyman my wry amusement at how he had studiously avoided mentioning my name or the part I had played in bringing these inconvenient facts into the daylight, preferring to give the impression that the "new" evidence to which he referred had somehow emerged of its own accord or by chance. The reality is, as you know full well, that he had more than enough information from me last November to have confirmed then what he has now been forced to accept. In the same context, I note that you too, in your reply to Dr. Ladyman, failed completely even to mention that I had drawn these errors to your attention last November, that you had ignored them, and that you had also ignored in March precisely the same further evidence I sent you that forced even Dr. Ladyman to admit they were wrong.

8/ The only reference whatever in your response, to me or my part in this affair was your snide and offensive phrase "the pro-speeding lobby", confirming once again that you simply do not understand the problems, the issues or the solutions. Like all others I know, I campaign against speed cameras not because I am pro-speeding but because all the evidence I see confirms that these fatuous attempt to reduce speeding have caused far more problems than the speeding ever did – have you never heard of the law of unintended consequences? Indeed, I set out in a previous letter and again in my letter to Dr. Ladyman precisely why cameras can never prevent more than the odd 1% of accidents - and I have also previously pointed out that there are at least thirty identifiable adverse side effects which collectively swamp any camera benefits. Fatality statistics show by far the worst reduction in the most significant indicator of road risk (deaths per 10bn vehicle km) in the last decade than at any previous time other than the blackout of WW2 - yet you blithely carry on refusing even to look at the evidence, instead placing your faith in the simplistic mantra "speed kills" and the snake-oil of the speed camera lobby and manufacturers.

9/ Finally – one or two MPs I know have suggested to me that I should be less critical of your conduct, in that you are well intentioned, well liked and potentially an useful ally on other issues. However in my view and I am sure most others’, road safety policy is far too important to be influenced by those so removed from the real world that they believe that a speed camera costs only £7,500 a year, that a far less complex flashing sign twice as much, who fail to realise that basing cost effectiveness comparisons on only two sites, and that for only the first year, is nonsense, and who, when finally faced with irrefutable evidence that the information was wrong, claim to believe that such self-evident nonsense could have been submitted in good faith – and in any case makes no difference!

 I therefore have no hesitation whatever in calling for the your resignation and that of every member of your Committee, on the grounds that you are clearly incompetent to hold the positions you do.

This letter and the one to Dr. Ladyman will be published on www.safespeed.org.uk/vas.html alongside all other relevant correspondence.

Yours sincerely,

Idris Francis

